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MESSAGE
CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

from
Dear Shareholders, Partners, and Members of 
Sunshine Homes!

In 2024, despite the global economy 
continuing to face significant challenges such 
as geopolitical instability, escalating trade 
wars, and inflationary pressures, Vietnam has 
maintained a growth rate of 7.09%, exceeding 
the set target. This reflects the economy’s strong 
resilience and provides a solid foundation for 
various sectors, including the real estate market.

Despite the common difficulties, the Vietnamese 
real estate market has begun showing positive 
signs, thanks to support from legal and credit 
policies. The swift implementation of laws 
such as the Land Law 2024, Law on Housing 
2023, and Law on Real Estate Business 2023 
has resolved many issues, creating favorable 
conditions for the industry’s robust recovery.

In 2024, Sunshine Homes achieved a revenue 
of VND 3,363.53 billion and a profit after tax of 
VND 817.07 billion, fulfilling 84.09% and 77.82% 
of the set targets, respectively. Although not 
fully meeting all the goals, on behalf of Sunshine 
Homes, I would like to express our sincere 
gratitude to all employees for their valuable 
contributions throughout the past year.

One of the key steps in Sunshine Homes’ 
development strategy is the comprehensive 
restructuring plan, aimed at optimizing the 
organizational structure, operational processes, 
and increasing work efficiency. In particular, 
close collaboration with Sunshine Group 
Joint Stock Company during the restructuring 
process will allow both companies to maximize 
available resources, thereby enhancing 
competitiveness and expanding development 
scale. Through this, Sunshine Homes will not 
only solidify its position in the market but 
also elevate its brand to become a symbol of 
sustainable development in the new era of the 
real estate industry.

This restructuring will not only increase 
operational efficiency but also bring about 
a unified development strategy, ensuring 
closer integration of activities between the 
two companies. This will help optimize costs, 

improve product and service quality, and 
better meet the increasingly high demands of 
customers and the market. The alignment in 
the development strategy will create a solid 
foundation for Sunshine Homes to continue 
asserting its pioneering position and grow 
strongly in the future. Sunshine Homes also 
remains committed to developing high-quality 
real estate products, focusing on the real needs 
of customers, and applying modern technology 
to all projects. We concentrate on developing 
“green” products and ecological spaces, creating 
sustainable values for both the community and 
our customers. Furthermore, the application 
of digital technology will optimize operational 
processes, enhance customer experience, and 
improve transparency in transactions.

We sincerely thank you for your continued 
support and trust. We are committed to making 
continuous efforts to ensure that Sunshine 
Homes grows sustainably and achieves new 
achievements in the future.

Yours sincerely!

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nguyen Xuan Anh

Annual Report | 2024 54 Sunshine Homes



Dear Shareholders, Partners, Customers, and all Employees of Sunshine Homes

I am deeply honored and proud to have been entrusted with the role of General Director of Sunshine 
Homes. This is an important milestone in my career, and I would like to sincerely thank the Board of 
Directors and all shareholders for placing their trust in me and giving me this opportunity.

Sunshine Homes has had an impressive journey of development, with remarkable achievements 
in the real estate market. However, I understand that each stage of growth presents challenges 
and requires innovation in order to continuously enhance our competitive ability. I am committed 
to maintaining and building upon the successes we have achieved, while focusing on strategic 
solutions to face the challenges of the new era.

One of my priorities as General Director is to strengthen and develop a strong, dynamic, and 
creative workforce. I believe that with the power of our people, Sunshine Homes will overcome 
all obstacles and advance even further in developing high-quality real estate projects, applying 
modern technology, and striving for sustainable development.

We will continue to innovate and improve our processes, increasing work efficiency to better serve 
the needs of our customers and shareholders. Every decision and action taken by Sunshine Homes 
in the future will always focus on the customer and community values.

Thank you for your support and cooperation. I am confident that with continuous collaboration and 
effort, we will strengthen Sunshine Homes’ position as a leading entity in the real estate industry 
and create lasting value for the community.

MESSAGE
GENERAL DIRECTOR

General Director

Jun Sungbae

from
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I. GENERAL INFORMATION
1. Overview
2. Business lines and locations
3. Information on governance model, business 
organization, and management apparatus
4. Development orientation
5. Risks
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FULL NAME

Tel

Charter capital

Trade name

Stock code

Website

Owner’s investment capital

SUNSHINE HOMES DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address 9th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 
Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

0247.302.5888

VND 3,750,000,000,000

Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company

SSH

https://ssh.vn

VND 3,750,000,000,000

Business Registration 
Certificate No

0106784499

OVERVIEW1

HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

OTHER EVENTS: none

Year Key milestones

2015 Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company was formerly known as Sunshine Vietnam 
Construction Joint Stock Company, established on March 9, 2015, with a charter capital of VND 
100 billion. The Company initially specialized in real estate business, consulting, and leasing; 
housing construction, social infrastructure, and installation of construction systems.

2016 •	 On January 15, 2016, Sunshine Vietnam Construction Joint Stock Company was renamed 
Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company.

•	 On February 5, 2016, the Company received a Business Registration Certificate from the Hanoi 
Authority for Planning and Investment with a charter capital of VND 500 billion.

•	 On March 30, 2016, Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company reverted to its original name, 
Sunshine Vietnam Construction Joint Stock Company.

•	 In September 2016, the Company relocated its headquarters to the 43rd Floor, Keangnam 
Landmark Tower 72, Pham Hung, Hanoi.

•	 In September 2016, Sunshine Vietnam Construction Joint Stock Company signed a brand 
Development Cooperation Contract with Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company, allowing it 
to use the “Sunshine” brand and trade name owned by Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company.

•	 In September 2016, the Company officially launched and introduced the Sunshine Center 
Project (Nam Tu Liem District) to the market. The project was invested by the Company as the 
first Investor, representing the lead investor in partnership with Mai Trang Company Limited.

2019 •	 In November 2019: The Company relocated its headquarters to Sunshine Center Building - 16 
Pham Hung, Nam Tu Liem, Hanoi, marking it as the new headquarters of Sunshine Group.

•	 On December 9, 2019, the Company signed an agreement with Samsung Vina Company to 
provide smart home solutions for high-end projects of the Company.

2018 In December 2018, the Company increased the charter capital to VND 2,500 billion.

2022 •	 On January 21, 2022, Sunshine Homes completed the public offering and reported the results 
to the State Securities Commission. On January 25, 2022, the State Securities Commission 
issued an official notification regarding the offering results. Through this, Sunshine Homes 
successfully offered an additional 125 million SSH stocks to the public through a rights issue to 
existing shareholders, increasing the total number of SSH stocks traded on the stock exchange 
to 375 million and raising the charter capital from VND 2,500 billion to VND 3,750 billion.

•	 Xuan La Construction Investment Joint Stock Company officially became a subsidiary of 
Sunshine Homes as of February 16, 2022.

•	 On April 27, 2022, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution approving the 
acquisition of 5,900,000 shares, equivalent to 51.3% of the charter capital transferred by Anh 
Duong Star Joint Stock Company. As a result, Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company became 
a subsidiary of Sunshine Homes.

•	 On June 18, 2022, Sunshine Homes successfully held its Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
2022, passing several important resolutions concerning the Company’s operations.

2024

2020 •	 On January 9, 2020, Sunshine Vietnam Construction Joint Stock Company and Sunshine Group 
Joint Stock Company agreed to cooperate in using the Sunshine App platform - a platform for 
real estate trading, investment, and business.

•	 In March 2020, the Company and Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company collaborated and 
officially launched the financial-real estate investment model 4.0, known as Sunshine Fintech, 
in which the investment products are the Company’s high-end real estate projects.

•	 On October 30, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of 89.2% of the capital 
contribution transferred by Hung Thinh Phat Housing Investment Company Limited at a 
purchase price of VND 2,187,450,000,000, equivalent to 37.71% of SSH’s total assets as of 
December 31, 2019. As a result, Hung Thinh Phat Housing Investment Company Limited became 
a subsidiary of the Company from October 30, 2020.

On December 3, 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of 99.115% of the charter capital 
(equivalent to 40,637,308 shares) transferred by Long Bien Construction Investment Joint Stock 
Company at a transfer price of VND 542,000,000,000. As a result, Long Bien Construction 
Investment Joint Stock Company became a subsidiary of the Company as of this date.

2023 •	 Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company received resolutions from the Board 
of Directors of Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of the Company) No. 
2403/2023/NQ-HDQT and from the Board of Directors of Xuan Dinh Construction Investment 
Joint Stock Company (an indirect subsidiary of the Company) No. 2403/2023/NQ-HDQT/XD 
regarding the sale/transfer of all shares/ capital contributions owned by these companies in 
the following companies: Sunshine AM Joint Stock Company, Sunshine E&C Construction Joint 
Stock Company, and Bao Tin Son Tung Company Limited.

•	 On December 22, 2023, the Company completed the acquisition of 45% of the charter capital 
(equivalent to 4,500,000 shares) transferred by Sunshine Tay Ho Joint Stock Company (the 
Investor of the Sunshine Wonder Villas Project) from Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company at 
a transfer price of VND 450,000,000,000. As a result, Sunshine Tay Ho Joint Stock Company 
became an associate of the Company as of this date.

2021 •	 On June 15, 2021, the Company became a public company under Official Letter No. 2853/
UBCK-GSDC issued by the State Securities Commission.

•	 On June 17, 2021, the Company officially changed its name from “Sunshine Vietnam Construction 
Joint Stock Company” to “Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company.”

•	 On July 20, 2021, the Company was approved by the Hanoi Stock Exchange for registration of 
trading 250,000,000 stocks, and on August 4, 2021, the Company’s stocks were officially traded 
on the Upcom market under the stock code SSH.

•	 On December 10, 2021, the Company conducted an additional public offering of 125,000,000 
stocks through a rights issue to existing shareholders.

•	 In 2021, the Company received the transfer of all shares at Hung Thinh Phat Housing Investment 
Company Limited, increasing its ownership in this Company to 100%.
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BUSINESS LINES AND LOCATIONS2
BUSINESS LINES

THE BUSINESS LOCATION

The business location of Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock 
Company covers the entire territory of Vietnam. Currently, the Company 
is focusing on developing major projects in Hanoi, Hue, and Phan Thiet. 
These are key real estate markets that attract significant interest from 
investors across the country.

No. Business lines Business line 
codes

1 Specialized design activities
Details: Interior decoration activities (excluding construction design services);

7410

2 Short-term accommodation services
Details: Hotels
Villas or apartments providing short-term accommodation services
Guesthouses or motels providing short-term accommodation services

5510

3 Wholesale of metals and metal ores
(Excluding trading in gold, silver and precious metals)

4662

4 Restaurants and mobile catering services 5610

5 Trading of own or rented real estate and land use rights
Details: Trading of real estate
(Excluding cemetery and burial site infrastructure investment for the purpose of 
transferring land use rights attached to infrastructure) 

6810
(Major)

6 Real estate consulting, brokerage, auction, and land use rights auction services
Details:
- Real estate brokerage services;
- Real estate consulting services;
- Real estate management;
(For conditional business lines, the enterprise is only allowed to conduct business when 
meeting the conditions prescribed by law)

6820

7 Demolition 4311

8 Site preparation
(Excluding bomb and mine clearance and similar activities)

4312

9 Completion of construction works 4330

10 Installation of electrical systems 4321

11 Installation of other construction systems
Details:
- Installation of irrigation systems, heating and air conditioning systems or industrial 
machinery in the construction and civil engineering industry; - Installation of industrial 
equipment systems in the construction and civil engineering industry such as:
+ Elevators, escalators,
+ Automatic doors, 
+ Lighting systems,
+ Vacuum systems,
+ Sound systems.

4329

 12 Wholesale of building materials and other installation equipment
Details:
- Wholesale of bamboo, rattan, logs, and processed wood
- Wholesale of cement
- Wholesale of bricks, tiles, stones, sand, and gravel
- Wholesale of construction glass
- Wholesale of tiles and sanitary equipment
- Wholesale of paint and varnish

4663

13 Rental of machinery, equipment and other tangible items without operators
(Excluding the rental of aircraft and balloons)

7730

14 Road freight transport
Details:
- Freight transport by specialized trucks;
- Freight transport by other road vehicles.

4933

15 Construction of residential buildings 4101

16 Advertising (Excluding tobacco advertising) 7310

17 Construction of non-residential buildings 4102

18 Trade promotion and introduction organization 8230

19 Construction of railway works 4211

20 Rental of motor vehicles 7710

21 Construction of road works 4212

22 Management consulting activities
Details: Consulting and assisting businesses or services in planning, organization, 
efficiency, and management information, etc.

7020

23 Installation of water supply, drainage, heating and air conditioning systems 4322
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APPARATUS

3

3.1. COMPANY GOVERNANCE MODEL 

3.2. MANAGEMENT APPARATUS STRUCTURE

The Company applies a governance model in accordance with Point a, Clause 1, Article 137 of the Law on Enterprises 
2020, which includes the following bodies: the General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors 
and General Director. Among these, the GMS is the highest authority body, responsible for exercising its functions, 
rights, and duties as outlined in the Company’s Charter and relevant laws.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors is an entity elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders to oversee the Board of Directors 
and the Board of General Directors in managing and operating the Company. It is responsible for verifying the 
completeness, legality, and accuracy of business reports and financial statements, inspecting and assessing the internal 
control system, risk management, and issuing early warnings for the Company. The Board of Supervisors is accountable 
to the law and the General Meeting of Shareholders for executing its rights and responsibilities. The Board of Supervisors 
operates independently of the Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors. The Board of Supervisors and 
its members have the right to review financial statements, monitor compliance with the Company’s Charter, examine 
internal audit reports, ensure the legality of management and administration, and perform other duties as stipulated in 
the Company’s Charter. Currently, the Board of Supervisors has 3 members, with a term of 5 years. 

The current Board of Supervisors consists of 03 members. The structure of the Board of Supervisors is as follows:

OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

•	 Secretarial function: Responsible for office, clerical, and secretarial tasks of the Board of Directors; preparing and 
managing the shareholder register; recording and storing minutes, resolutions, decisions, and other official documents 
of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, and the Board of Supervisors.

•	 Shareholder relations function: Receiving, guiding and clarifying shareholder inquiries; providing official business 
performance information to shareholders, investors, members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, the 
Company’s management departments, and relevant State authorities.

BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors is responsible for managing all business operations of the Company and is accountable 
to the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, and the law for organizing production and business 
activities, implementing measures to achieve the Company’s development objectives.

The current Board of General Directors of the Company consists of 01 General Director and 03 Deputy General 
Directors. The structure of the Board of General Directors and Chief Accountant is as follows:

Source: Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company

Source: Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company

No. Full name Position

1 Dao Ngoc Tuan Anh Head of the Board of Supervisors

2 Tran Dang Khoa Member of the Board of Supervisors

3 Le Thi Thu Giang Member of the Board of Supervisors

No. Full name Position

1 Jun Sungbae General Director

2 Nguyen Thi Thanh Ngoc Deputy General Director

3 Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh Deputy General Director

4 Phan Ich Long Deputy General Director

5 Nguyen Ha Anh Chief Accountant

EXPLANATION OF THE FUNCTIONS
OF THE COMPANY’S MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS:

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest decision-making body of the Company. It is responsible for 
discussing and approving the Company’s development direction, deciding on capital structure, making investment 
and business decisions, handling large-scale asset transfers and mortgages, and approving mergers, consolidations, 
divisions, and separations of the Company. The General Meeting of Shareholders also elects the management and 
operation apparatus of the Company’s business activities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors is the governing body of the Company and has the authority to make decisions on all matters 
related to the Company’s objectives and interests, except for issues under the exclusive authority of the General Meeting 
of Shareholders that cannot be delegated. The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the medium-term 
development strategy, approving the annual business plan, establishing the organizational structure, defining internal 
management regulations, and making decisions to achieve the objectives set by the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

The current Board of Directors consists of 05 members. The structure of the Board of Directors is as follows:

Source: Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock Company

No. Full name Position

1 Nguyen Xuan Anh Chairman of the Board of Directors

2 Do Anh Tuan Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

3 Jun Sungbae Member of the Board of Directors 

4 Nguyen Nam Viet Member of the Board of Directors

5 Nguyen Viet Hai Independent member of the Board of Directors

INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, 
BUSINESS ORGANIZATION, AND MANAGEMENT 
APPARATUS

3
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The departments and divisions within the Company 
perform specialized functions to ensure the effective 
and lawful management, organization, and operation of 
business activities by the Board of General Directors.

PROJECT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Project Planning & Development Board 

•	 Perform functions related to project M&A, including: 
(i) Analyzing and identifying investment opportunities; 
(ii) Developing M&A strategies; (iii) Negotiating and 
executing M&A deals;

•	 Search for and develop land banks, conduct planning, 
and implement investment procedures for projects;

•	 Develop proposals, analyze, and evaluate project 
feasibility and efficiency;

•	 Carry out legal procedures related to development, 
purchase and sale of projects; implement and complete 
projects for operational use.

Design Management Board 

•	 Develop architectural planning concepts according to 
the project stages and the legal requirements of the 
project;

•	 Manage, supervise, and evaluate planning designs, 
concept designs, and basic designs.

•	 Construction Division includes the Technical Board, 
Construction Completion Management Board, Materials 
& Procurement Board, and Project Management Boards.

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

Technical Board 

•	 Control and validate technical designs, structural 
designs, construction drawings, and construction 
methods;

•	 Control cost estimations and request adjustments if 
necessary;

•	 Manage, supervise, and evaluate construction quality 
and progress;

•	 Manage, control, and validate the construction methods 
of contractors (including supervision consultants);

•	 Conduct acceptance, prepare payment documents, 
verify records, and transfer them to the Project 
Accounting Department for final settlement.

Construction Completion Management Board 

•	 Provide specialized consultancy on materials, design, 
and construction completion;

•	 Organize and manage functions related to design 
management, material solutions, contractor selection, 
and construction supervision related to the completion 
phase of projects.

Materials & Procurement Board 

•	 Research and evaluate trends in advanced materials 
and equipment solutions in the real estate field to 
propose appropriate material plans for projects;

•	 Evaluate and select contractors, negotiates, and 
executes contracts with contractors;

•	 Check and review total investment costs and 
construction estimates; break down packages and 
manage their implementation progress;

•	 Handle procurement and bidding functions to support 
the Company’s operational activities.

Project Management Boards

Serve as the focal points for managing construction 
investment projects, including project management, 
scheduling, quality control, occupational safety, 
environmental hygiene, and fire prevention from project 
commencement until the acceptance of the project to 
put into use.

BUSINESS DIVISION

Business Board

•	 Advise and be responsible before the Board of General 
Directors and Board of Directors for business activities, 
management and operation of assigned tasks;

•	 Develop business strategies, detailed implementation 
plans, sales policies, and product prices for assigned 
projects based on consultations from relevant 
departments to ensure maximum profitability for the 
Company;

•	 Manage and operate sales activities through different 
distribution channels, formulate specific plans and 
policies for each channel, and ensure all sales targets 
are met.

Marketing and Communications Board

•	 Provide advice and support to the Board of General 

Directors and the Board of Directors in managing and 
operating marketing for the company’s products and 
services;

•	 Develop, plan, and create marketing strategies that 
align with the Company’s business strategies for its 
projects. Manage and evaluate the effectiveness 
of marketing tools/channels, monitor and support 
marketing and sales programs for agents;

•	 Perform external and internal communication within 
the Company. 

Customer Service Department

•	 Perform tasks related to customer documents and 
procedures for signing real estate contracts and 
handing over red books to customers;

•	 Implement customer care activities (consulting, 
answering inquiries, addressing complaints and 
requests from customers during the entire process, from 
the moment they sign the deposit agreement to the 
completion of real estate handover);

•	 Manage accounts receivable from customers 
purchasing real estate;

•	 Propose and implement after-sales programs.

FINANCE & ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Finance Board

•	 Advise on building and improving the financial 
management system, internal spending management 
in accordance with current legal regulations and the 
Company’s specific requirements;

•	 Conduct financial analysis and forecasting, make 
short, medium, and long-term financial plans for the 
Company;

•	 Analyze and plan budgets and capital raising needs, 
propose capital raising measures and methods, 
implement and monitor plans;

•	 Propose, implement, and develop capital raising 
channels for projects; propose and negotiate with credit 
institutions to develop personal financial solutions for 
customers purchasing real estate;

•	 Advise on capital management and use, monitor and 
assess the flow of business capital through various 
forms, and advise on related issues such as risk 
management, etc.

Accounting Board

Perform accounting work, manage the Company’s assets 
and liabilities, prepare financial statements, tax reports, 
and related reports for relevant authorities, provide 
documents and explanations during audits or inspections 
by competent authorities.

ADMINISTRATION & HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION

Legislation Board

•	 Provide advice and support to the Board of Directors and 

the Board of General Directors on legal issues related 
to the organization, management and operation of the 
Company’s production and business activities, develop 
and amend the Company’s Charter, rules, regulations 
and internal regulations;

•	 Consult or recommend legal advisory services for 
issues related to the Company’s production and 
business activities, and assess investment and business 
environment risks for the Company’s investment 
projects;

•	 Protect the Company’s legal rights and interests, and 
represent the Company in dealing with competent 
State authorities, customers, and partners to resolve 
disputes or claims.

IT Department

•	 Manage the Company’s internal IT system;

•	 Support asset management and IT equipment, build 
and manage basic configurations for each type of IT 
equipment based on its intended use;

•	 Provide user support, install applications, and train 
users; receive requests and address issues during 
software usage, computer operation, and hardware 
system functioning.

Administration Department

Perform administrative functions for the office and 
projects, including: (i) general administration: purchasing 
equipment and tools, reception, events, logistics; (ii) 
document archival, administrative management, and 
administrative procedures for employees.

Human Resources Board

•	 Develop human resource plans and policies;

•	 Implement organizational development tasks: 
Organizational model, functions and tasks, job 
descriptions and job title standards;

•	 Create and manage KPIs: Measure job performance 
and effectiveness.

•	 Identify training needs, plan and implement human 
resource training activities, and assess training 
effectiveness.

•	 Perform recruitment functions.

•	 Manage employee-related tasks, including: (i) salary 
and benefits for employees; (ii) manage employee 
information and labor relations.

•	 Manage human resources such as preparing employee 
records based on labor contracts, developing 
recruitment policies, handling social insurance, health 
insurance, leave policies, resignations, disciplinary 
actions, resumes and documents; Organize reception 
work, organize conferences, parties, etc., and other 
administrative work as assigned by the Board of 
Directors and the Board of General Directors.

INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, 
BUSINESS ORGANIZATION, AND MANAGEMENT 
APPARATUS

3

EXPLANATION OF THE FUNCTIONS
OF THE FUNCTIONAL UNITS
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3.3. INTRODUCTION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AS OF 
DECEMBER 31, 2024

HUNG THINH PHAT HOUSING 
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

•	 Address: 11th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, 
No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu 
Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

•	 Charter capital: VND 4,145,000,000,000 

•	 Business activities: Real estate investment, 
construction and business

•	 Ownership percentage: 100%

•	 Business Registration Certificate No.: 
0108325719

LONG BIEN CONSTRUCTION 
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK 
COMPANY

•	 Address: Executive Office, Lot CT7, Nguyen 
Lam Street, Phuc Dong Ward, Long Bien 
District, Hanoi City

•	 Charter capital: VND 410,000,000,000

•	 Business activities: Real estate investment, 
construction and business

•	 Ownership percentage: 99.12%

•	 Business Registration Certificate No.: 
0108715437

XUAN LA CONSTRUCTION 
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK 
COMPANY

•	 Address: 4th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, 
No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu 
Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

•	 Charter capital: VND 780,000,000,000

•	 Business activities: Real estate investment, 
construction and business

•	 Ownership percentage: 97.00%

•	 Business Registration Certificate No.: 
0107565651

XUAN DINH CONSTRUCTION 
INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK 
COMPANY  
(through Hung Thinh Phat Housing Investment 
Company Limited) 

•	 Address: 9th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, 
No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu 
Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam

•	 Charter capital: VND 1,000,000,000,000

•	 Business activities: Real estate investment, 
construction and business

•	 Ownership percentage: 94.00%

•	 Business Registration Certificate No.: 
0107565644

ANH DUONG STAR JOINT STOCK 
COMPANY

•	 Address: SH03-01, R3 Building, Sunshine 
Riverside Project, Lot CT03A-CT, CT03 Block, 
Nam Thang Long Urban Area, Phu Thuong 
Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

•	 Charter capital: VND 1,150,000,000,000

•	 Business activities: Real estate investment, 
construction and business

•	 Ownership percentage: 51.30%

•	 Business Registration Certificate No.: 
0101358793

SUBSIDIARIES

SUNSHINE TAY HO JOINT STOCK 
COMPANY

•	 Address: 12th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, 
No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu 
Liem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

•	 Charter capital: VND 1,000,000,000,000

•	 Business activities: Real estate investment, 
construction and business

•	 Ownership percentage: 45.00%

•	 Business Registration Certificate No.: 
0108268436

ASSOCIATE

INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, 
BUSINESS ORGANIZATION, AND MANAGEMENT 
APPARATUS

3
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION4

4.1. MAIN OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPANY

4.2. MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

4.3. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

To adapt to market fluctuations, Sunshine Homes 
continuously innovates and refines its business strategy in 
response to increasing competition. The Company focuses 
on enhancing its capabilities and optimizing value for 
customers. With a long-term vision, Sunshine Homes aims 
to develop high-quality real estate projects that integrate 
modern technology while maintaining a customer-centric 
approach. Based on this foundation, the Company has 
outlined key strategies to enhance competitiveness and 
create sustainable value. Specifically, these strategies 
include:

•	 Comprehensive restructuring plan of the Company with 
Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company

+ The Company and Sunshine Group Joint Stock 
Company (“Sunshine Group”) share significant 
similarities, including major shareholders with joint 
control, a shared real estate market strategy, and 
the development and distribution of projects under 
the Sunshine brand. To optimize resources, enhance 
competitiveness, and expand development scale, 
both companies will have steps to restructure the 
company, unify governance and operations, brands, 
and business development strategies to better control 
costs and improve operational efficiency.

+ To execute the restructuring plan and concentrate 
resources on both the Company and Sunshine Group, 
alongside decisive internal transformations within 
each company, the restructuring process will require 
approval from regulatory authorities as well as the 
support of shareholders and the General Meeting of 
Shareholders of the respective companies.

+ This is a particularly important strategic step in the 
current landscape, bringing substantial resources, 
exceptional operational efficiency, and elevating the 
Sunshine brand within the real estate market in this 
new era of the country and nation.

Sunshine Homes not only focuses on fostering an equitable 
work environment that encourages creativity and professional 
growth for employees but also prioritizes building a strong 
corporate culture. The Company’s business operations are 
guided by sustainable core values, a strict adherence to legal 
compliance, and a steadfast commitment to ethical business 
practices. These principles ensure long-term benefits for 
employees, shareholders, customers, and the community. 

Aiming to become a leading real estate developer in Vietnam, 
Sunshine Homes is dedicated to sustainable growth and aspires 
to be a source of pride for its employees, the community, and 
the nation. To achieve this vision, the Company focuses on the 
following key strategies:                                                                                                                                

Sunshine Homes is committed to a sustainable development 
model that ensures a harmonious balance between economic 
growth, environmental protection, and contributions to the 
community. To achieve this goal, the Company has developed 
a strategy based on four key pillars: Sustainable business 
operations, people, environment, and social responsibility. 
Specifically:

•	 Rapid yet sustainable growth: Sunshine Homes prioritizes 
safety, efficiency, and sustainability in all strategic decisions. 
These core principles enable the company to maintain a 
strong position in the real estate market.

•	 Establishment of a strong workforce: The Company 
continuously enhances recruitment quality and improves 
employee benefits to attract and retain top talent. Human 
resource development is considered a fundamental factor 
that drives innovation and strengthens Sunshine Homes’ 
competitive ability.

•	 Continued focus on target customers: With a clear 
vision of prioritizing customers who have genuine 
housing needs, Sunshine Homes remains steadfast in its 
commitment to developing products tailored for end-
users.

•	 Enhancement of the core value of products: The 
Company continues to invest in researching and 
developing innovative technological solutions, 
consistently upgrading, refining, and expanding the 
scope of intelligent applications to apply in products 
serving residents, creating a chain of technology real 
estate products associated with cultural experiences, 
preserving and honoring Vietnam’s  heritages. 
Additionally, Sunshine Homes places a strong emphasis 
on green and ecological spaces in all projects, ensuring 
premium living standards through “green” real estate 
products and enhanced customer experiences.

•	 Technology integration in real estate: Digital technology 
is driving profound transformations in the real estate 
industry, not only influencing transaction methods but 
also enhancing project management and operation 
efficiency. The integration of technology enables 
automation across various processes, reducing errors, 
saving time, optimizing resources, and increasing 
productivity. Additionally, data analysis tools provide 
enterprises with deeper insights into customer needs, 
thereby building more effective marketing and sales 
strategies. Furthermore, technology contributes to 
greater transparency and security in transactions, 
fostering trust among customers and partners. Online 
platforms also expand market reach, unlock new 
investment opportunities, and drive sustainable growth 
in an increasingly competitive environment.

•	 Standardization of environmental and supply 
chain standards: Promulgating strict regulations on 
environmental standards and optimizing the process of 
selecting contractors and reputable construction material 
suppliers. This approach enhances product quality, ensures 
project implementation progress, and increases long-term 
sustainable value.

•	 Innovation of the corporate ecosystem: Gradually 
developing modern urban areas with a diverse ecosystem 
that integrates essential amenities such as housing, schools, 
supermarkets, and entertainment complexes, creating an 
ideal living environment, contributing to improving the 
quality of life for residents and the local community.

•	 Development of green and energy-efficient urban areas: 
Sunshine Homes focuses on investing in environmentally 
friendly real estate projects that minimize negative 
impacts on the ecosystem. The urban areas developed by 
the Company not only meet housing demands but also 
enhance residents’ quality of life through green spaces, 
modern amenities, and safe living environments.

•	 Application of advanced construction technology: The 
Company strives to use eco-friendly materials, reduce 
waste during the construction process, and invest in modern 
technology to optimize business efficiency while minimizing 
environmental impact.

•	 Enhancement of social responsibility: Sunshine Homes 
actively participates in community activities, contributing to 
social security, education and infrastructure development 
programs. These efforts not only reinforce the Company’s 
commitment to sustainable development but also help 
build its reputation and social responsibility.

RISKS5

ECONOMIC GROWTH RISKS

The year 2025 is expected to be a promising yet 
challenging period for SSH. The robust economic 
recovery following previous years’ fluctuations will create 
numerous opportunities, particularly in generating more 
employment, increasing income levels, and improving 
living standards. 

Additionally, the overall economic growth trend will serve 
as a key driver for Vietnamese enterprises to expand 
operations, enhance competitiveness, and make better 
use of available resources. With its flexible development 
strategy and innovation orientation, SSH will have the 
chance to solidify its position in the market, expand 
operations, and improve business efficiency.

However, alongside these opportunities, SSH will also 
face several challenges. Increasing competition, higher 
customer demands, and the strong trend of digital 
transformation will require enterprises to constantly 
innovate, improve product quality, services, and optimize 
operational processes. Furthermore, fluctuations in the 
financial market, economic policies, and global trends 
will also be factors to consider in the process of planning 
development strategies.

In response to these opportunities and challenges, 
the Company’s leadership has proactively developed 
strategic scenarios and prepared the necessary resources 
to adapt flexibly to any economic changes. This will not 
only help the Company maintain growth momentum 
but also ensure the ability to effectively respond to 
unexpected situations, laying a solid foundation for 
sustainable development in the future.

INFLATION RISKS

For enterprises operating in the economy in general 
and the real estate industry in particular, high inflation 
can negatively affect the increasing cost of project 
development.

Rising construction material costs: Inflation pushes up the 
prices of building materials such as cement, steel, sand, 
bricks, glass, etc., raising the total construction costs. This 
leads to higher real estate prices, which could affect the 
purchasing ability of buyers.

Increasing labor costs: As inflation rises, wages and labor 
costs also increase, putting additional financial pressure 
on investors.

Higher borrowing costs: Inflation typically leads to tighter 
monetary policies, which result in higher interest rates on 
loans. This increases the financial costs for real estate 
companies, particularly those highly dependent on 
borrowed capital.

To mitigate the risk of rising costs, the Company’s 
leadership actively monitors economic trends and regularly 
collaborates with contractors to control and stabilize 
construction costs. At the same time, the Company seeks 
sustainable supply sources and maintains a clean land 
fund, helping to minimize abnormal fluctuations in input 
costs, ensuring financial efficiency and project progress.
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INTEREST RATE RISKS

In the real estate business, interest rates play a key role, 
directly affecting both the investment cost of projects and 
market purchasing power. Low and stable interest rates 
enable buyers to easily access loans with reasonable 
costs, thereby boosting demand for real estate ownership 
and investment. When inflation is controlled at low levels, 
the State Bank of Vietnam can lower lending rates and 
loosen monetary policies, facilitating access to capital 
for enterprises and individuals, which in turn stimulates 
consumption and economic growth.

On the other hand, when deposit and lending rates 
increase, the cost of capital for real estate enterprises 
also rises, putting significant pressure on product costs 
and profits. Higher interest rates reduce buyers’ ability 
to access loans, leading to a decline in market demand, 
lower liquidity, and affecting the industry’s growth rate.

Additionally, when interest rates rise, investors tend to 
redirect their funds to other financial channels such as 
savings or bonds instead of real estate investment. This 
can slow down market growth and put pressure on 
enterprises to maintain sales and cash flow.

To mitigate the impact of interest rates on business 
operations, SSH actively implements measures to 
optimize cash flow, encourages customers to make early 
payments on completed projects, and adds capital for 
production and business activities to reduce reliance 
on debt and optimize capital costs. The Company also 
actively seeks lower-cost credit sources and diversifies 
its capital raising channels to enhance financial capacity 
and ensure sustainable long-term development.

LEGAL RISKS

The real estate industry is heavily influenced by the legal 
system and state management policies. Changes in legal 
regulations may affect the investment, development, and 
transaction processes in real estate, creating various risks 
for the Company, such as: 

1. Fluctuations in policies and legal regulations

•	 Changes to relevant laws such as the Land Law, Law 
on Housing, Law on Real Estate Business, and Law 
on Construction may affect the process of licensing, 
planning, and project implementation.

•	 Policies tightening the conditions for project 
development, especially regarding land use conversion, 
ownership, and administrative procedures, may delay 
project timelines and increase legal costs.

2. Risks related to legal procedures and land ownership

•	 The process of granting investment licenses, planning, 
transferring and trading real estate may take longer, 
causing project delays.

•	 The overlap between legal regulations and the 
differences in how localities apply them increase the 
risk of disputes and litigation.

•	 Changes in policies on land prices, land taxes, and land 
use fees can affect the profitability and feasibility of 
projects.

RISKS IN CREDIT AND FINANCIAL POLICIES

•	 The State may adjust real estate credit policies, such as 
tightening loan conditions or increasing the risk factor 
for real estate loans, affecting the ability of enterprises 
and homebuyers to raise capital.

•	 Regulations on corporate bond issuance and capital 
flow management in real estate can alter the financial 
strategies of enterprises in the industry.

To mitigate legal risks, the Company implements strict 
management measures to ensure compliance with legal 
regulations and protect the interests of the company, 
shareholders, and stakeholders, such as: Proactively 
following up on forecasts, drafts, and adjustments to 
new laws related to the real estate industry and business 
operations, and collaborating with legal experts and 
regulatory authorities to stay informed about changes, 
and adjusting strategies accordingly.

COMPETITIVE RISKS

In recent years, the real estate market nationwide, 
especially in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City, has shown signs 
of recovery. Several large names own projects in these 
areas and neighboring provinces, and these enterprises 
can be competitors in terms of market share with SSH. 
Therefore, in order to increase competitiveness and build 
its market position, the Company has been focusing on 
high-end product segments and applying 4.0 technology 
in its transaction activities.

The Company has also been focusing on developing 
luxury real estate projects, with diverse segments ranging 
from low-rise to high-rise, including both residential and 
resort properties.

RISKS RELATED TO PROJECT 
IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS

One of the specific risks in the real estate industry is 
the project implementation progress, which can be 
influenced by various factors such as: (1) the process of 
compensation and land clearance, (2) legal procedures, 
(3) capital disbursement progress, and (4) construction 
progress. Delays in project implementation not only affect 
the Company’s cash flow but also lead to many other 
consequences such as delayed payment collection from 
customers, increased financial costs, interest, labor costs, 
machinery operation costs, and reduced investment 
efficiency.

Recognizing these challenges, the Company has 
proactively developed effective risk management plans, 
from closely monitoring each project phase to applying 
flexible solutions when delays occur. With a highly 
experienced and skilled team, the Company always 
ensures proper control of project progress, minimizes 
negative impacts, and optimizes operational efficiency.

RISKS RELATED TO FLUCTUATIONS IN 
MATERIAL PRICES

Operating in the real estate business, the Company’s cost 
structure mainly consists of: project acquisition costs, 
land costs, construction and project development costs, 
marketing and sales costs, and financial costs. Among 
these, project acquisition costs, land costs, and contractor 
hiring expenses account for a significant portion of the 
Company’s total input costs.

Fluctuations in land prices, building materials, and 
construction costs can directly affect the product 
cost and influence the Company’s business results. 
To mitigate this risk, SSH proactively negotiates and 
signs contracts directly with project transfer units and 
contractors to control input costs, limit price fluctuations, 
and ensure financial efficiency. Thanks to its flexible and 
proactive strategy, the Company maintains stability in its 
business operations, optimizes costs, and enhances its 
competitiveness in the market.

RISKS RELATED TO CAPITAL MOBILIZATION 
FOR INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE 
PROJECTS

In the near future, SSH will continue to invest in large-
scale real estate projects to strengthen its position and 
expand its influence in the market. To ensure financial 
resources for this development strategy, the Company 
has built a diversified capital mobilization plan from 
various sources, including: (1) Borrowing from financial 
and credit institutions, (2) Reinvesting its own capital from 
completed projects, (3) Issuing stocks to increase charter 
capital, and (4) Raising capital through the international 
financial market, etc.

The success of capital mobilization from these sources 
will directly affect the project implementation progress 
and the Company’s business results in the coming 
years. Therefore, SSH always proactively applies flexible 
financial strategies suitable for each stage, optimizes 
capital costs to ensure stable cash flow, and continuously 
supports sustainable project development.

ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS

During the land clearance process and project 
implementation, the Company may inevitably cause 
adverse environmental impacts such as: Impact on 
geology, air pollution, and noise pollution.

The Company always adheres to environmental 
management regulations and conducts evaluations to 
provide solutions for minimizing environmental impacts.

OTHER RISKS

In addition to the risks mentioned, the Company may 
also face uncontrollable risks such as natural disasters, 
epidemics, wars, fires, etc. These events can seriously 
affect the Company’s assets, personnel, and overall 
operations. To minimize negative impacts, the Company 
has proactively implemented preventive measures such as 
purchasing insurance for assets (machinery, equipment, 
etc.), personnel insurance, installing fire prevention and 
fighting systems at its headquarters and branches, and 
strengthening labor safety and risk prevention training.

Risk management is an essential part of the Company’s 
sustainable development strategy, helping to identify, 
assess, and control financial, legal, strategic, and security 
risks that may affect capital and profits. These risks can 
arise from various factors such as financial fluctuations, 
legal responsibilities, errors in business strategies, 
or external factors. Without thorough preparation, 
unexpected events could negatively impact the 
Company’s operations.

Therefore, Sunshine Homes always considers risk 
management as a core element in the process of 
strategic planning and corporate governance. The Board 
of Directors and Board of General Directors work closely 
with specialized departments to analyze, evaluate, and 
optimize the balance between risks and opportunities. 
The Company proactively selects and accepts risks within 
a controllable scope to ensure effective and sustainable 
business operations.

RISKS5
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1.	 Production and business performance
2.	 Organization and personnel
3.	 Investment and project implementation status
4.	Financial situation
5.	 Shareholder structure, changes in owner’s investment 

capital
6.	Sustainable development report

II. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
DURING THE YEAR  
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PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE1

1.1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR

1.2. PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO PLANS

In 2024, the global economy continued to recover at a slow pace due to the prolonged impact of geopolitical uncertainties, 
the escalation of trade wars between nations, and persistent inflationary pressures. These factors have heightened instability in 
financial markets, disrupted global supply chains, and hindered the growth rate of many countries.

However, despite these challenges in the global economic environment, Vietnam has maintained a positive growth momentum. 
With flexible economic policies, increased public investment, and effective inflation control measures, Vietnam’s economy 
achieved a growth rate of 7.09% compared to 2023, exceeding the Government’s target.

The real estate market has shown signs of a strong recovery following a period of stagnation, supported by legal and credit 
policies. Notably, the early implementation of the Land Law 2024, Law on Housing 2023, and Law on Real Estate Business 2023 
has facilitated market revitalization, helping to resolve existing bottlenecks and bringing about clear improvements after a 
challenging period.

Regarding the Company’s performance in 2024, revenue was recorded at VND 3,363.53 billion, while profit after tax reached 
VND 817.07 billion, fulfilling 84.09% and 77.82% of the targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders, respectively. The 
decline in revenue and profit was primarily due to real estate transfer activities falling short of expectations, along with a 
decrease in financial income compared to the planned targets.

Although the real estate market showed many positive signs in 2024, for SSH, this was still a year that fell short of expectations. 
Although revenue from sales and service provision in 2024 was roughly equivalent to that of 2023, the proportion of revenue from 
low-rise residential real estate transfers over total revenue was lower than in 2023. As a result, gross profit from sales and service 
provision decreased by VND 442.6 billion, equivalent to a 24.6% decline compared to the same period last year.

The decline in revenue and profit was primarily due to real estate transfer activities falling short of expectations, along with a 
decrease in financial income compared to the planned targets.

No.

(1)

Content

(2)

Performance 
2023

(3)

Performance  
2024

(5)

Performance/
Plan 2024

(5)/(4)

Performance 2024/
Performance 2023

(5)/(3)

Plan
2024

(4)

1 Total revenue 
(VND 

billion)

3,858.93 3,363.53 84.09% 87.16%4,000

2 Profit after 
tax (VND 

billion)

1,299.49 817.07 77.82% 62.88%1,050
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2.1. EXECUTIVE BOARD
•	 Position: Deputy General Director

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1983

•	 Professional qualification: Master of Business Administration

•	 Appointment date: June 2021

•	 Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh holds a Bachelor’s degree in 
Economics from the National Economics University and 
a Master of Business Administration from Delaware State 
University, USA. She has extensive experience in the finance 
and banking sector in Vietnam and has held senior positions 
such as Head of Finance Board at Geleximco Group and 
Chairwoman of the Board of Directors at An Binh Investment 
Fund Management Joint Stock Company.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the Company: 0.04%

Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh

•	 Position: Deputy General Director

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1985

•	 Professional qualification: Civil Engineer

•	 Appointment date: May 2023

•	 He has extensive experience in the construction sector. He 
has held various positions, including: Member of the Board 
of Directors/Deputy General Director - KSFINANCE Group 
Joint Stock Company; Deputy General Director - Sunshine 
Group Joint Stock Company; Member of the Board of 
Directors - Thien Hai Joint Stock Company; Member of 
the Members’ Council/Deputy General Director - Dynamic 
Innovation Company Limited; Deputy General Director - 
Sunshine - Design Joint Stock Company.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the Company: 0%

Mr. Phan Ich Long

•	 Position: Chief Accountant

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1992

•	 Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting - 
Auditing

•	 Appointment date: March 2025

•	 He has extensive experience in the accounting field. He 
has held various positions, including: Audit Team Leader/
Audit Assistant at Ernst & Young Vietnam Company Limited 
– Hanoi Branch; General Accountant at Vingroup; Chief 
Accountant at Xuan La Construction Investment Joint Stock 
Company, etc.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the Company:  0.002%

Mr. Nguyen Ha Anh

•	 Position: Deputy General Director

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1977

•	 Professional qualification: Architect

•	 Appointment date: March 2025

•	 She has extensive experience in the field of architecture, 
she has held various positions, including Director of 
Architecture, Planning, and Interior Design at Vinaconex 
R&D Consultants for Construction Investment & New 
Technologies Applications Joint Stock Company; Head 
of Design Management Board at Sunshine Group, 
before being appointed as the Deputy General Director 
of the Company.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the Company: 0%

•	 Position: Member of BOD, General Director, Legal 
Representative

•	 Nationality: Korean

•	 Year of birth: 1985

•	 Professional qualification: Certified tax accountant, 
CFA level 2

•	 Appointment date: March 2025

•	 Before being appointed as the General Director of the 
Company, he held various positions, including: Customer 
Service Team Leader (Income Tax & Withholding Tax) 
at the National Tax Service of South Korea; Building 
Management Supervisor at Springmount Services, 
Australia; International Sales Director at KS Finance; 
Deputy Director in charge of International Business at 
Sunshine Saigon Group Joint Stock Company. 

•	 Shareholding ratio in the Company: 0%

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh NgocMr. Jun Sungbae

ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL2
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ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL2

2.2. CHANGES IN THE EXECUTIVE BOARD IN 2024

2.3. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

None.

In 2024, the real estate market experienced significant positive changes, creating strong growth opportunities for enterprises. 
In response to this development, the Company proactively expanded its workforce across both the parent company and its 
subsidiaries to enhance operational capacity and meet the demands of business expansion. As of December 31, 2024, according 
to the Company’s audited separate financial statements for 2024: the Company had a total of 163 employees, an increase of 
8.63% compared to 150 employees in 2023.

No. Criteria

Quantity (people) Proportion (%) Quantity (people) Proportion (%)

2023 2024

I 150 100% 163 100%By qualification level

II 150 100% 163 100%By gender

4 5 3.3% 6 3.68%Vocational training

1 67 44.7% 74 45.40%Male

1 20 13.3% 16 9.82%Postgraduate

3 3 2.0% 4 2.45%College

5 1 0.7% 4 2.45%Unskilled labor

2 83 55.3% 89 54.60%Female

2 121 80.7% 133 81.60%University

III 150 100%By age

1 28 18.7% 30 18.40%Under 30

3 0 0% 0 0%Over 50

2 122 81.3% 133 81.60%Between 30 and 50

163 100%

2.4. POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES
The Company places great emphasis on encouraging and 
facilitating employees’ participation in training programs 
to improve their qualifications in order to perform well the 
assigned tasks, meeting professional standards and job 
requirements as prescribed. The Company has developed a 
training and development regulation for employees, which 
clearly states the scope, subjects, training forms and training 
regimes.

The Company focuses on 6 key training areas as follows:

Inspiring culture: To help employees gain a deep 
understanding of the Company’s history, culture, and 
regulations regarding appearance, attitude, behavior, and 
communication. This fosters employee engagement and 
contributes to building a strong and sustainable corporate 
culture.

Leadership competency training: Recognizing the 
importance of Executive Officers, the Company provides 
intensive professional training to ensure that executive 
officers effectively fulfill their leadership roles in accordance 

with the Company’s leadership competency framework.

Professional skills training: The Company places great 
emphasis on specialized professional training for employees 
to enhance their knowledge and expertise. This not only 
supports individual career development but also improves 
work efficiency while aligning with the Company’s long-term 
sustainable growth objectives.

Core competency training: To equip employees with essential 
soft skills according to the Company’s core competency 
framework, ensuring better job performance.

Regulatory and policy training: Training content disseminates 
and updates the Company’s current regulations and policies 
to equip employees with necessary information during their 
work.
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A. MAJOR INVESTMENTS 

INFORMATION ON PROJECTS INVESTED BY SSH/ITS SUBSIDIARIES

SUNSHINE CENTER PROJECT
The Sunshine Center Project is the Company’s first product, known as “the tower of light and the most 
advanced modern technology in Vietnam” thanks to its state-of-the-art lighting technology that has 
bestowed the building with a dazzling beauty and a unique appearance for the entire area. Located in 
a strategic position on Pham Hung Street – the diamond land of Hanoi, and inspired by Trump Tower 
- the centerpiece of New York, Sunshine Center makes its mark with a contemporary design featuring 
royal accents that exude upscale sophistication. Embodying sustainable value for a high-end lifestyle, 
the project stands as a prestigious landmark in the Western part of the Capital, a classic real estate 
product of Sunshine Homes with the mission to affirm the stature of a new icon. The project was 
completed and put into operation in 2019. It serves as an important foundation for the Company to 
continue executing future projects with ever-increasing scale and quality.

Detailed information on the Sunshine Center Project: 

•	 Legal name of the Project: “Commercial, Service, Office, and Residential Center” at No. 16 Pham 
Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi City.

•	 Trade name of the Project: Sunshine Center.

•	 Location: No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi City.

•	 Scale: The project covers 6,695 m² of land, including 1,277 m² of road frontage as per planning; 
comprising two 30-story towers with 214 apartments.

•	 Total investment: VND 1,800 billion; Investment capital sourced from equity, loans, and other funds.

•	 Joint investment with Mai Trang Co., Ltd. (approved for investment under Decision No. 4007/QĐ-
UBND dated July 21, 2016 by the People’s Committee of Hanoi City)

•	 Company information:

+ Business registration number: 0106784499, first registered on March 9, 2015 and subsequent 
amendments.

+ Address: 9th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu Liem 
District, Hanoi.

+ Charter capital: VND 3,750 billion.

•	 Status: Handed over and put into use.

SUNSHINE CITY PROJECT
The Project Investor is Xuan Dinh Construction Investment Joint Stock Company (an indirect subsidiary 
of the Company). The project has been completed and put into operation, owning a fresh natural area 
surrounded by a green tree system and fresh air from the Red River, bringing an ecological life of 
enjoyment and peace right in the heart of the city. In addition, with a diverse closed service - utility 
system, serving all essential needs from entertainment, shopping, dining, to health care: Sunshine 
Mart supermarket, four-season swimming pool, outdoor swimming pool, along with assured high-
quality apartments, Sunshine City has received positive feedback and satisfaction from its residents. 
In particular, 6 high-rise buildings are designed with thematic color-changing lighting, creating an 
exceptionally dazzling visual effect that contributes to a completely new landscape along the major 
transportation route from Noi Bai Airport to the center of Hanoi.

Detailed information on the Sunshine City Project:

•	 Legal name of the Project: High-Rise Residential Complex with Integrated Commercial Services 
at Lot I.A.23-CT, Nam Thang Long Urban Area (Phase II), Dong Ngac Ward, Xuan Dinh Ward, Bac 
Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

•	 Trade name of the Project: Sunshine City Project.

•	 Location: Dong Ngac Ward and Xuan Dinh Ward, Bac Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

•	 Scale: The project covers 21,702 m2 of land, including 6 buildings ranging from 38 to 40 floors with 
1,791 apartments.

•	 Total investment: VND 5,600 billion; Investment capital sourced from equity, loans, and other 
funds.

•	 Investor: Xuan Dinh Construction Investment Joint Stock Company – An indirect subsidiary of the 
Company.

+ Business registration number: 0107565644, first registered on September 15, 2016 and subsequent 
amendments.

+ Address: 9th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, No. 16 Pham Hung, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

+ Charter capital: VND 1,000 billion.

•	 Status: Handed over and put into use.

INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 
STATUS3
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SUNSHINE GARDEN PROJECT
The Project Investor is Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company (an indirect subsidiary of the Company). 
Evoking the idea of a beautiful European garden right in the heart of the city, Sunshine Garden stands 
out as a highlight of the sustainable green architecture model, featuring a range of high-class on-
site amenities such as a community lounge, community library, sunbathing area in the children’s 
playground, outdoor sports area, 5-star standard outdoor swimming pool, sunbathing terrace, a series 
of podium shophouses, and a luxurious, upscale restaurant and cafe system… all designed to provide 
a perfect living experience for all residents.

Detailed information on the Sunshine Garden Project:

•	 Legal name of the Project: Commercial, Service, Office, and Residential Complex - ADG Garden 
Apartment Building at Lot I1-HH1, Vinh Tuy Ward, Hai Ba Trung District and Mai Dong Ward, Vinh 
Hung Ward, Hoang Mai District, Hanoi.

•	 Trade name of the Project: Sunshine Garden.

•	 Location: Planning Lot I1-HH1, Mai Dong Ward, Vinh Hung Ward, Hoang Mai District and Vinh Tuy 
Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City.

•	 Scale: The project covers a land area of 12,810 m² with 3 buildings of 31 floors (including technical 
floor and rooftop), 2 basements, a total of 1,244 apartments, and 16 podium shophouses.

•	 Total estimated investment: VND 3,200 billion. The project is financed through equity, loans, and 
other legally mobilized funds.

•	 Project Investor: Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company.

+ Business registration number: 0101358793, first registered on April 9, 2003 and subsequent 
amendments.

+ Address: SH03-01, R3 Building, Sunshine Riverside Project, Lot CT03A-CT, CT03 Block, Nam Thang 
Long Urban Area, Phu Thuong Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

+ Charter capital: VND 1,150 billion.

•	 Status: Handed over and put into use.

SUNSHINE PALACE PROJECT
The Project Investor is Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company (a direct subsidiary of the Company). 
Embracing a luxurious European-Neoclassical architectural style, Sunshine Palace is prominently 
located in the Southern part of the Capital, an area already home to top-tier amenities such as Park 
Hill - Times City and the Vinh Hung eco-urban area. Harmoniously blending contemporary distinctive 
beauty with the subtle charm of Vietnamese cultural values, the mission of Sunshine Palace is to 
create an entirely new and upscale lifestyle. 

Detailed information on the Sunshine Palace Project

•	 Legal name of the Project: STAR AD1 Hotel, Commercial Service, and Residential Complex.

•	 Trade name of the Project: Sunshine Palace.

•	 Location: Lot C2/CN3, Mai Dong Ward, Hoang Mai District, Hanoi.

•	 Scale: The project covers a land area of 3,778 m². It includes a 27-story apartment building block, 
a 17-story hotel block, and 2 common basements; the apartment building block comprises 312 
apartments, and the hotel block has 85 rooms.

•	 Total estimated investment: VND 1,030 billion. The project is financed through equity, loans, and 
other legally mobilized funds.

•	 Project Investor: Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company.

+ Business registration number: 0101358793, first registered on April 9, 2003 and subsequent 
amendments.

+ Address: SH03-01, R3 Building, Sunshine Riverside Project, Lot CT03A-CT, CT03 Block, Nam Thang 
Long Urban Area, Phu Thuong Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

+ Charter capital: VND 1,150 billion. 

•	 Status: Handed over and put into use. 

A. MAJOR INVESTMENTS 

INFORMATION ON PROJECTS INVESTED BY SSH/ITS SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 
STATUS3
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SUNSHINE CAPITAL TAY THANG LONG PROJECT
The Project Investor is Xuan La Construction Investment Joint Stock Company (a direct subsidiary 
of the Company). Located along the premier arterial boulevard of Tay Thang Long, where lucrative 
investment flows prosper, Sunshine Capital Tay Thang Long creates a first-class 4.0 commercial, 
entertainment, and resort complex featuring limited-edition luxury villas with classic European 
architecture and exclusive amenities. 

Detailed information on the Sunshine Capital Tay Thang Long Project

•	 Legal name of the Project: Low-rise Housing.

•	 Trade name of the Project: Sunshine Capital Tay Thang Long.

•	 Location: Lot TT6-2 under the detailed planning of Tay Tuu urban functional area, Tay Tuu Ward, Bac 
Tu Liem District, Hanoi City.

•	 Scale: The project covers an area of 13,001 m², consisting of 32 townhouses and 16 villas.

•	 Total estimated investment: VND 640 billion; the project is financed from equity, loans, and other 
funds.

•	 Project Investor: Xuan La Construction Investment Joint Stock Company.

+ Business registration number: 0107565651, first registered on September 15, 2016 and subsequent 
amendments.

+ Address: 4th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu Liem 
District, Hanoi.

+ Charter capital: VND 780 billion.

•	 Status: Handed over and put into use.

SUNSHINE GREEN ICONIC PROJECT
Sunshine Green Iconic is regarded as the most beautiful urban area in Long Bien District, a modern 
apartment building complex 4.0, located right in the new economic and technology center of Hanoi, 
with a scale of nearly 17,000 m² featuring 4 high-end apartment buildings and a series of convenient 
service infrastructures such as a commercial service shopping center, gym, school, spa, cafe restaurant, 
all-season swimming pool, etc.

Detailed information on the Sunshine Green Iconic Project

•	 Legal name of the Project: High-Rise Housing Project for Sale at Lot CT7 under the technical 
infrastructure development project for lots in Planning Zone C14 and the adjacent roads serving 
the land use rights auction in Phuc Dong Ward, Long Bien District, Hanoi (“Sunshine Green Iconic 
Project”).

•	 Trade name of the Project: Sunshine Green Iconic Project.

•	 Location: Lot CT7 under the technical infrastructure development project for lots in Planning Zone 
C14 and the adjacent roads serving the land use rights auction in Phuc Dong Ward, Long Bien 
District, Hanoi.

•	 Scale: 16,769.3 m2.

•	 Total investment: VND 1.300 billion.

•	 Project Investor: Long Bien Construction Investment Joint Stock Company.

+ Business registration number: 0108715437, first registered on April 24, 2019.

+ Address: Executive Office, Lot CT7, Nguyen Lam Street, Phuc Dong Ward, Long Bien District, Hanoi 
City.

+ Charter capital: VND 410 billion.

•	 Status: Handed over and put into use. 

A. MAJOR INVESTMENTS 

INFORMATION ON PROJECTS INVESTED BY SSH/ITS SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 
STATUS3
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In addition, in 2024, the Company and its subsidiaries signed deposit contracts to purchase shares of investment 
companies owning large projects, including: Sunshine Grand Capital Project, Sunshine Heritage Hanoi Project, Noble 
Empire Project, Noble Crystal Tay Ho Project, and The Phoenix Garden Project. The total share transfer value of these 
projects amounts to over VND 4,000 billion, of which the total deposit value exceeds VND 2,400 billion.

IMAG E S O F SO ME P ROJ ECTS D E V E LO P E D /
J O INT LY D E V E LO P E D BY T HE C O MPA NY/

SU B S ID IA R Y

INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 
STATUS3
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Sunshine Center Sunshine City

Sunshine Garden
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Sunshine Capital Tay Thang Long

Sunshine Green IconicSunshine Palace
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B.  SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Xuan Dinh Construction Investment Joint Stock Company

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 7,581.47 7,821.78 3.17

Net revenue VND billion 1,254.10 512.06 (59.17)

Operating profit VND billion 799.45 240.30 (69.94)

Other profit VND billion 4.75 3.22 (32.21)

Profit before tax VND billion 804.20 243.53 (69.72)

Profit after tax VND billion 642.12 192.78 (69.98)

Sunshine Tay Ho Joint Stock Company

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 2,045.19 1,835.37 (10.26)

Net revenue VND billion - - -

Operating profit VND billion (55.64) (13.34) 76.03

Other profit VND billion - - -

Profit before tax VND billion (55.64) (13.34) 76.03

Profit after tax VND billion (55.64) (13.34) 76.03

Hung Thinh Phat Housing Investment Company Limited

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 4,140.55 4,144.16 0.09

Net revenue VND billion - - -

Operating profit VND billion - - -

Other profit VND billion - (0.00003) (0.003)

Profit before tax VND billion (0.49) (0.86) (75.51)

Profit after tax VND billion (0.49) (0.86) (75.51)

Xuan La Construction Investment Joint Stock Company

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 2,011.61 1,133.23 (43.67)

Net revenue VND billion 1,036.43 496.49 (52.10)

Operating profit VND billion 638.23 236.33 (62.97)

Other profit VND billion 7.45 0.49 (93.42)

Profit before tax VND billion 645.69 236.82 (63.32)

Profit after tax VND billion 517.15 187.84 (63.68)

Long Bien Construction Investment Joint Stock Company

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 3,319.82 2,307.49 (30.49)

Net revenue VND billion  - 1,790.66 1,790.66

Operating profit VND billion (14.05) 532.94 3,893.27

Other profit VND billion 1.03 81.7 7,832.04

Profit before tax VND billion (13.02) 614.66 4,820.89

Profit after tax VND billion (13.34) 495.69 3,815.47

Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 2,585.34 2,254.22 (12.81)

Net revenue VND billion 598.54 121.68 (79.67)

Operating profit VND billion 190.52 (4.94) (102.59)

Other profit VND billion (12.10) (12.56) (3.80)

Profit before tax VND billion 178.42 (17.50) (109.81)

Profit after tax VND billion 154.63 (17.50) (111.32)

SUBSIDIARIES

ASSOCIATES

INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 
STATUS3
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A. FINANCIAL SITUATION

FINANCIAL SITUATION4

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 % Growth

Total assets VND billion 13,200.83 14,394.87 9.05

Net revenue VND billion 2,901.24 2,933.92 1.13

Profit from Business Activities VND billion 1,630.22 1,031.39 (36.73)

Other Profit VND billion (3,332.40) (2,220.54) (33.37)

Profit before tax VND billion 1,626.89 1,029.17 (36.74)

Profit after tax VND billion 1,299.49 817.07 (37.12)

Dividend payout ratio % 0 0 0

Other indicators:

Indicator 2023 2024

ROA 7.14% 5.83%

ROE 24.89% 14.38%

No.

1

3

2

Indicator

Liquidity ratio

Operational efficiency ratio

Capital structure ratio

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Inventory turnover

Total asset turnover

Debt-to-total assets ratio

Debt-to-equity ratio

2023 2024

1.90

1.72

1.80

0.21

54.71

120.80

1.88

1.62

0.81

0.18

55.76

126.02

Unit

Times

Times

Times

Times

%

%

4 Profitability ratio

Pre-tax profit margin 35.0856.08%

Pre-tax Return on Equity 15.7927.86%

Return on Assets 5.837.14%

Operating profit margin 35.1556.19%

B. KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE, CHANGES IN 
OWNER’S INVESTMENT CAPITAL5

No.

2

4

3

Shareholder category

Other shareholders

Total

State

Domestic

Domestic

Domestic

Foreign

Foreign

Foreign

Number of stocks Ownership (%)
Individual

202

204

0

2

200

202

0

2

2

Organization

3

3

0

0

2

2

0

1

1

Number of shareholders

108,750,000 

375,000,000

0

266,250,000

108,749,765

374,999,765

0

235

235

1 Major shareholders 
(owning 5% or more)

2 0266,250,000 71

29

100

0

71

28.9999

99.9999

0

0.0001

0.0001

Treasury share transactions: None
Other securities: None

C. CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S INVESTMENT CAPITAL

Time

March 2015

October 2018

February 2016

January 2022

Charter capital (VND billion) Details Issuing authority

100.00

2,500.00

500.00

3,750.00

Initial capital contribution Hanoi Department
of Planning and Investment

Issuance to existing shareholders Hanoi Department
of Planning and Investment

Issuance to existing shareholders Hanoi Department
of Planning and Investment

Issuance to existing shareholders State Securities Commission

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT6
6.1. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
As a company operating in the real estate sector, Sunshine 
Homes is fully aware that construction and project 
development activities can contribute to greenhouse gas 
emissions and impact the environment. Therefore, the 
Company prioritizes sustainable project implementation, 
focusing on energy-efficient solutions and environmental 
protection.

Sunshine Homes continuously researches and develops green 
urban areas, utilizing modern construction technologies to 
minimize negative impacts on the ecosystem. Additionally, 
the Company aims to create eco-friendly living spaces by 
increasing green areas, using sustainable building materials, 
and integrating renewable energy solutions into its projects.

Through its sustainability strategies, Sunshine Homes not 
only contributes to reducing greenhouse gas emissions but 
also enhances the quality of life for residents. The Company 
is committed to providing safe, modern, and nature-friendly 
living spaces, ensuring a harmonious balance between 
urban development and environmental preservation.

6.2. MATERIAL RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT
Operating in the real estate business, the Company’s cost 
structure primarily consists of project acquisition and 
land funds, construction and development costs, as well 
as costs for marketing, sales execution, marketing and 
apartment handover, alongside financial costs. Among 
these, the costs associated with acquiring projects, land 
funds, and hiring construction contractors account for a 
significant portion of total input costs of the Company.

Fluctuations in project land bank and the prices of building 
materials can directly affect product costs, thereby 
affecting business performance. However, to mitigate 
these risks, Sunshine Homes benefits from its ability to 
negotiate and sign direct contracts with multiple transfer 
partners and contractors. This allows the Company to 
effectively control input costs, optimize resources, and 
minimize the impact of market fluctuations, ensuring 
business stability.

6.3. ENERGY CONSUMPTION
The Company is committed to sustainable development 
by prioritizing the use of environmentally friendly building 
materials to reduce negative impacts on the ecosystem. 
During construction, the Company implements optimal 
measures to minimize waste generation, including 
efficient material management, recycling, and adhering 
to safe waste disposal standards.

Furthermore, the Company continuously invests in 
advanced technologies to enhance construction 
processes, reduce emissions and energy consumption, 
and improve operational efficiency. The application 
of modern technology not only lessens environmental 
impact but also optimizes costs, enhances construction 
quality, and boosts overall business efficiency.

With sustainability as a core principle, the Company 
strives to balance economic growth with environmental 
protection responsibility, aiming for a green construction 
industry and long-term development.

6.4. WATER CONSUMPTION
With the goal of sustainable development as a guiding 
principle in its operations, the Company prioritizes water 
resource protection and optimization in all its operations. 
To achieve this, the Company has implemented specific 
measures, including:

•	 Wastewater treatment before discharge into the 
environment: The Company applies advanced water 
treatment solutions in its developed urban areas, 
ensuring that wastewater meets environmental 
standards before being released. This contributes to 
ecosystem preservation and the protection of clean 
water sources.

•	 Raising awareness and responsibility of employees: 
The Company promotes propaganda and training 
programs to increase awareness of the use of water 
economically and effectively, thereby creating a culture 
of responsibility within the organization.

•	 Applying smart technology to the management and 
operation of water supply systems: The Company 
invests in modern equipment and technology with 
high automation, helping to optimize the water usage 
process, save energy, reduce waste and ensure safe and 
environmentally friendly water supply. 

•	 Through these solutions, the Company not only protects 
water resources but also contributes to improving the 
quality of life for the community, towards a green, clean 
and sustainable living environment.

6.5. COMPLIANCE WITH 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
LAWS
The Company is committed to strict compliance 
with environmental protection laws, ensuring that all 
business and construction activities adhere to current 
environmental standards. Sunshine Homes continuously 
enhances awareness of responsibility, implements control 
measures, and minimizes negative environmental impacts, 
aiming for sustainable development that harmonizes with 
the ecosystem.

6.6. EMPLOYEE-RELATED POLICIES
a) Number of employees and average salary for 
employees:

Indicator 2023 2024

Average income 
(VND/person/month)

38,969,650 38,650,703

A. SHARES
Stock information 2024 
Sunshine Homes stock (Stock code: SSH) is a real estate sector stock, listed on UPCOM on August 4, 2021.
•	 Number of shares registered for trading: 375,000,000 shares
•	 Number of outstanding shares: 375,000,000 shares
•	 Of which:
   + Number of freely transferable shares: 375,000,000 shares
   + Number of restricted shares: 0 shares
   + Treasury shares: 0 shares
   + Par value per share: VND 10,000

The maximum foreign ownership ratio for SSH is set at 50%: Approved by the State Securities Commission under 
Decision No. 4676/UBCK-PTTT dated July 22, 2022.

B. SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE (AS OF MARCH 13, 2025)
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b) Labor policies to ensure the health, safety and welfare of 
employees

All official employees of the Company are entitled to social benefits 
in accordance with the Labor Law. Additionally, depending on their 
job role, employees may receive gasoline allowances, professional 
allowances, etc.

The Company also continuously improves its employee welfare 
policies by providing financial support for weddings, illness - 
hospitalization, maternity leave, bereavement, etc. Moreover, 
the Leadership and Trade Union of the Company always focus 
on developing and maintaining extracurricular activities such as 
collective activities, sports, etc.

Annually, the Company organizes vacation trips for employees and 
conducts regular health check-ups.

c) Employee training activities

Sustainable development is one of the most important goals of the 
Company, so regular training programs are regularly organized 
and carefully prepared for each department. These programs help 
ensure that the workforce maintains high qualifications, aligning 
with market demands.

6.7. REPORT ON RESPONSIBILITY TO 
LOCAL COMMUNITIES
The Company continuously innovates and enhances its business 
ecosystem to create products and services that positively impact 
the environment and society. A major focus is on developing 
modern, civilized urban areas that not only meet housing needs 
but also provide a well-rounded living environment where residents 
can settle, study, work, and enjoy recreational activities within an 
integrated space.

The urban ecosystem envisioned by the Company is not merely 
a residential area but also an interconnected network of schools, 
shopping centers, and entertainment facilities, ensuring a 
convenient and well-synchronized living environment. Through 
smart urban planning and sustainable development, the Company 
improves the quality of life for residents while contributing to local 
and regional socio-economic growth.

6.8. REPORT ON GREEN CAPITAL 
MARKET ACTIVITIES ACCORDING 
TO THE GUIDANCE OF THE STATE 
SECURITIES COMMISSION
In line with the Government’s sustainable development goals, the 
Company will focus on green bonds and green stocks as effective 
capital-raising solutions while supporting the transition to a green 
economy.

Funds raised from these sustainable finance channels will be prioritized 
for investment in green and environmentally friendly projects, including 
the development of ecological urban areas and the adoption of 
modern construction technologies to minimize greenhouse gas 
emissions, conserve energy, and optimize natural resources.

Through this strategy, the Company not only enhances its brand 
value and financial performance but also affirms its responsibility to 
the community, aiming for long-term, sustainable development in 
harmony with the environment, etc.
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1.	 Production and business performance 
evaluation	

2.	 Financial situation
3.	 Improvements in organizational, policy, and 

management structure
4.	Future development plan

III. REPORT AND EVALUATION 
BY THE BOARD OF GENERAL 
DIRECTORS
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No.

2

1

Indicator

Profit after tax

Total revenue

Plan Performance % performance/ plan

77.82%

84.09%

1,050

4,000

817.07

3,363.53

•	 The Company’s revenue reached VND 3,363.53 billion, achieving 84.09% of the planned target.
•	 The profit after tax reached VND 817.07 billion, achieving 77.82% of the target 2024.
•	 The decline in revenue and profit was primarily due to real estate transfer activities falling short of expectations, 

along with a decrease in financial income compared to the planned targets.

Unit: VND billion

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE EVALUATION1

No.

2

4

6

1

5

Indicator

Owner’s equity

Financial income

Profit after tax

Total assets

Profit before tax

2023 2024 Growth (%)

11.63

(55.14)

(37.12)

9.05

(36.74)

5,840.45

957.69

1,299.49

13,200.83

1,626.89

6,519.55

429.61     

817.07

14,394.87

3 Net revenue from sale of goods 
and provision of services

1.132,901.24 2,933.92     

1,029.17

OTHER INDICATORS: Unit: VND billion

2020 2020

2020

2020

2020

2021 2021

2021

2021

2021

2022 2022

2022

2022

2022

2023 2024 2023

2023

2023

2023

2024

2024

2024

2024

PROGRESS ACHIEVED BY THE COMPANY
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FINANCIAL SITUATION2 IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL, 
POLICY, AND MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 

3

A. ASSET SITUATION

B. LIABILITIES SITUATION

Financial situation Unit 2023 2024 Change Growth (%)

Total assets VND billion 13,200.83 14,394.87 1,194.04 9.05

Current assets VND billion 6,323.31 8,633.53 2,310.22 36.53

Non-current assets VND billion 6,877.53 5,761.34 (1,116.19) (16.23)

Total asset 
turnover (Net 
revenue/Average 
total assets)

Time 0.18 0.21 0.03 16.67

Indicator Unit 2023 2024 Change

Liabilities VND billion 7,360.39 7,875.32 514.93

Current liabilities VND billion 3,360.62 4,533.10 1,172.48

Non-current liabilities VND billion 3,999.77 3,342.22 (657.55)

Debt-to-Total Assets Time 0.56 0.55 (0.01)

•	 As of December 31, 2024, the Company’s total assets reached VND 14,394.87 billion, an increase of VND 1,194.04 
billion, equivalent to 9.05%, compared to early 2023.

•	 Of which: Current assets increased by VND 2,310.22 billion (36.53%), while non-current assets decreased by VND 
1,116.19 billion (16.23%) compared to 2023.

•	 The asset turnover ratio in 2024 was 0.21 times, an increase of 0.03 times compared to 2023. However, since the ratio 
remains below 1, it indicates that the Company has not yet fully optimized asset utilization.

•	 The overdue receivables of the Company account for a small proportion, so they hardly affect the business 
performance.

•	 As of December 31, 2024, the Company’s total liabilities stood at VND 7,875.32 billion, of which: Current liabilities 
increased by VND 1,172.48 billion, while non-current liabilities decreased by VND 657.55 billion.

•	 The debt-to-total asset ratio in 2024 was 0.55, a decrease of 0.01 compared to 2023.

•	 Thus, in 2024, with a debt ratio of 0.55<1, the Company demonstrates stable operation with a safe debt ratio.

•	 Sunshine Homes operates in the real estate sector in the Vietnamese market, and its customers (both input and 
output) are primarily Vietnamese. Therefore, the company is largely unaffected by fluctuations in exchange rates.

•	 The company has no overdue payables; however, its outstanding loan balance is quite large, so fluctuations in 
interest rates have a significant impact on the company’s profitability.

A. ENHANCING THE COMPANY’S 
ORGANIZATIONAL AND 
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
In 2024, the Executive Board implemented various policies 
and solutions to improve the Company’s organizational 
and management structure, including:

•	 Enhancing quality management: The Company 
continuously strengthens its quality management 
efforts to ensure that products and services meet strict 
standards and customer expectations. To achieve this, a 
stringent quality control system has been implemented, 
alongside professional training programs to improve 
employees’ expertise and optimize work efficiency.

•	 Improving business efficiency: The Company 
consistently innovates and enhances its products based 
on in-depth market research, ensuring that they meet 
customer demands and consumption trends. Products 
are developed not only for the regional market but 
also to target multiple customer segments. Product 
quality remains the top priority, playing a crucial role 
in building the Company’s brand and strengthening 
its market position. The Company is committed to 
maintaining and improving product quality to meet 
customer expectations.

•	 Applying advanced technology: The Company actively 
integrates technology to optimize resources and 
enhance operational efficiency. The Executive Board 
has introduced modern management standards and 
processes, ensuring a clear hierarchical system that 
improves business efficiency and facilitates systematic 
and effective internal management.

B. HUMAN RESOURCES AND 
WELFARE POLICIES
Training and development policy: The Company 
consistently prioritizes training and professional 
development for employees, creating conditions for 
individuals to continuously enhance their capabilities 
to meet job requirements and professional standards 
as prescribed by law, as well as the internal regulations 
of both the parent company and its subsidiaries. The 
training programs are systematically designed to help 
employees improve their skills and stay updated with new 
knowledge, thereby contributing effectively to the overall 
growth of the enterprise.

Salary, bonus, and welfare policy: The Company 
implements an attractive remuneration policy that 
ensures employees’ rights and serves as a motivation for 
them, including:

•	 Competitive income: Fixed salary, KPI-based salary, 
performance bonuses, and additional bonuses for 
holidays, Tet, birthdays, etc., are provided in accordance 
with the Company’s regulations.

•	 Insurance & benefits according to regulations: 
Employees are entitled to full benefits, including Health 
Insurance (HI), Social Insurance (SI), Unemployment 
Insurance (UI), etc., according to current regulations.

•	 Awarding individuals and teams with outstanding 
achievements.

•	 Supporting and visiting employees in cases of illness, 
maternity leave, or family events such as funerals and 
weddings.

•	 Organizing internal activities to enhance employees’ 
well-being and strengthen team cohesion.

•	 The above-mentioned remuneration policy not 
only demonstrates the Company’s commitment to 
employees’ material and mental well-being but also 
serves as a crucial motivation for individuals to stay 
engaged and contribute to the sustainable development 
of the enterprise.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLAN4

With a vision for sustainable growth, SSH remains 
steadfast in developing high-quality real estate products 
that meet market demands and directly serve end-users. 
In 2025, the Company will continue to enhance technology 
adoption, build community value, and optimize 
governance efficiency. Notably, the restructuring process 
with Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company (“Sunshine 
Group”) will mark a significant milestone, driving strong 
growth and elevating SSH’s market position. The key 
strategic focuses for the upcoming period include:

•	 Sustainable product development: SSH will prioritize 
the development of mid-range, high-end, and luxury 
real estate products, integrating advanced technology 
in the real estate sector to enhance the quality of 
living experiences. The Company places special 
emphasis on green and ecological factors, developing 
environmentally friendly projects and establishing a 
comprehensive ecosystem of amenities, aiming to 
provide residents not only with a premium living space 
but also with modern and convenient services.

•	 Strengthening technology application: The Company 
will further accelerate the application of digital 
technology in real estate operations to enhance 
management efficiency, streamline transaction 
processes, and improve customer experience. By 
integrating cutting-edge technologies such as 
Artificial Intelligence (AI), Big Data, and the Internet of 
Things (IoT), SSH aims to enhance market forecasting 
capabilities, asset management, and project 
operations with precision and speed. Additionally, 
Virtual Reality (VR) and Augmented Reality (AR) 
technologies will allow prospective buyers and tenants 
to remotely view properties and experience simulations 
of unfinished projects. The Company will also develop 
online platforms and electronic transaction tools to 
facilitate customer interactions, enabling easy access 
to information, conduct transactions and track project 
progress. The Company believes that the application of 
digital technology will not only boost revenue but also 
enhance work efficiency, increase transparency, and 
ensure security in real estate transactions.

•	 Creating community value: Beyond developing modern 
living spaces, SSH remains committed to preserving 
cultural values and protecting Vietnam’s heritage. The 
Company aims to develop sustainable urban areas that 
meet international standards, contributing to improving 
the quality of life for residents and the community.

•	 Strengthening management and risk control: SSH 
prioritizes strengthening management capabilities to 
ensure efficient business operations. The Company also 
implements stringent risk management measures to 
maintain stability and drive sustainable growth.

•	 Restructuring plan with Sunshine Group:

+ The strategic restructuring with Sunshine Group is 
designed not only to create uniformity in management 
and operations but also to leverage the collective 
strength of the entire Group, driving sustainable 
growth. This restructuring will maximize the Group’s 
strong financial resources, ensuring stable capital flow 
for large-scale projects, thereby improving execution 
capacity and expanding investment opportunities. 
Furthermore, the restructuring strategy provides a 
competitive edge by aligning business strategies, 
sharing customer networks, and leveraging the 
Sunshine brand’s market influence. This approach will 
not only enhance brand value but also solidify the 
Group’s position in the real estate market, ultimately 
delivering high-quality and prestigious products that 
attract strong customer interest.

+ Additionally, cost optimization is a key benefit of 
the restructuring process, as the consolidation of 
management systems, personnel, technology, and 
operational procedures will enhance efficiency. This 
will help the Company minimize operating expenses, 
improve work productivity, and increase profitability. By 
fully utilizing Sunshine Group’s service ecosystem and 
supply chain, member companies can take advantage 
of large scale, optimize input costs, and elevate service 
quality, generating comprehensive benefits across the 
ecosystem.

+ In advancing the restructuring process and optimizing 
resources for SSH and Sunshine Group, alongside 
extensive internal adjustments within each company, 
legal procedures related to the restructuring will also 
require approval from state management authorities. 
To achieve this, the Executive Board seeks the 
consensus of shareholders and the General Meeting of 
Shareholders from both Companies, ensuring that all 
decisions align with the best interests of shareholders 
and the sustainable development in the future.

COMPANY DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY TO ENSURE THE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BUSINESS PLAN 2025

THE CREATOR OF VOGUISH LIFESTYLE
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IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
EVALUATION OF
THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
1.	 General evaluation of the Company by the Board of 

Directors
2.	 Evaluation of the Board of General Directors’ 

Performance
3.	 Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

62 Sunshine Homes Annual Report | 2024 63



In 2024, the Board of Directors convened 16 meetings and 
issued 16 Resolutions on critical matters concerning the 
Company’s operations. The Board of Directors carried 
out governance activities and directed the Company’s 
investment and business activities in alignment with 
the Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders 2024, including: 

•	 The Board of Directors directed the implementation 
and completion of the share acquisition plan at Long 
Bien Construction Investment Joint Stock Company, 
whereby Long Bien Construction Investment Joint 
Stock Company became a subsidiary of the Company;

•	 The Board of Directors closely supervised the 
implementation and disclosure of information in 
accordance with regulations, including the Annual 
Report, Corporate Governance Report, Financial 
Statements, and related-party transactions, ensuring 
completeness and compliance with legal deadlines;

•	 The Board of Directors enhanced risk management by 
establishing a strict internal control system, proactively 
preventing and promptly responding to market 
fluctuations;

•	 The Board of Directors focused on improving the 
quality of the existing workforce while also seeking 
and developing successor human resources for the 
Company;

•	 The Board of Directors proactively updated information 
in a timely manner and formulated appropriate, flexible, 
and well-timed policies and strategies to respond to 
adverse market fluctuations;

•	 The Board of Directors focuses on guiding and supervising 
the company’s operations, particularly in fulfilling its 
environmental and social responsibilities. The Board’s 
commitment to these matters is demonstrated through 
the development and implementation of sustainable 
policies, ensuring that the company not only generates 
profits but also protects the environment and makes 
positive contributions to the community.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL 
DIRECTORS’ PERFORMANCE

2

The General Director has organized and managed the 
Company’s production and business operations within 
the authority, functions, duties, and powers as prescribed 
by law, the Company’s Charter, as well as the Resolutions 
and Decisions of the Board of Directors and the General 
Meeting of Shareholders.

During a period of significant changes in land and real 
estate business laws, the Executive Board proactively 
proposed appropriate business strategies to adapt to 
the new legal framework and maintain competitive 
advantages. The plans were designed with flexibility, 
ensuring compliance with legal regulations while 
optimizing business operations.

Additionally, the Executive Board focused on improving 
operational efficiency and cost optimization to ensure the 
Company’s sustainable development. At the same time, 
the Company continued to strengthen market research 
and enhance the quality of its products and services to 
better meet customer needs.

The Executive Board also implemented solutions to ensure 
the Company strictly complies with legal regulations 
and its established commitments while fully fulfilling its 
obligations to employees and relevant authorities.

PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

3

Although the real estate market is experiencing positive signals thanks to Government support policies, there remain 
numerous potential challenges, requiring enterprises to develop flexible strategies and high adaptability. In this 
context, Sunshine Homes prioritizes the completion and handover of ongoing projects. At the same time, the Company 
continues to work closely with Sunshine Group Joint Stock Company in the restructuring process to optimize resources. 
On this basis, the business plan 2025 has been developed with a cautious approach, ensuring alignment with market 
conditions and the Company’s sustainable development strategy.

No.

2

1

Criteria

Profit before tax

Total revenue

Plan 2025 (VND billion)

500

4,000

GENERAL EVALUATION OF THE COMPANY BY 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1
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V.	CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
1.	 Board of Directors
2.	 Board of Supervisors
3.	 Transactions, remuneration and 

benefits of the Board of Directors, 
Board of Management and 
Supervisory Board
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A. MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

•	 Position: Member of BOD, General Director, Legal 
Representative

•	 Nationality: Korean

•	 Year of birth: 1985

•	 Professional qualification: Certified tax accountant, CFA 
level 2

•	 Appointment date: April 2025

•	 Before being appointed as the General Director of the 
Company, he held various positions, including: Customer 
Service Team Leader (Income Tax & Withholding Tax) at the 
National Tax Service of South Korea; Building Management 
Supervisor at Springmount Services, Australia; International 
Sales Director at KS Finance; Deputy Director in charge 
of International Business at Sunshine Saigon Group Joint 
Stock Company.  

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0%

Mr. Jun Sungbae

•	 Position: Member of the Board of Directors

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1993

•	 Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

•	 Appointment date: From April 2025

•	 Mr. Nguyen Nam Viet has extensive experience in 
accounting. Prior to his appointment as a Member  of 
the Board of Directors, he has held positions at several 
companies, including: 

•	 Auditor Assistant at Unistars International Auditing 
Company Limited; Accountant at Sunshine Group 
Development Joint Stock Company and Sunshine Group 
Joint Stock Company; Chief Accountant at: KS Group Joint 
Stock Company, Sunshine Tay Ho Joint Stock Company, 
Northern Infrastructure Investment and Construction 
Company Limited, Gold Dragon Investment Company 
Limited, Sunshine Entertainment Joint Stock Company.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0.001%

Mr. Nguyen Nam Viet

•	 Position: Independent Member of the Board of Directors

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1985

•	 Professional qualification: Architect

•	 Appointment date: From May 2023

•	 Mr. Nguyen Viet Hai became an independent member of the 
Board of Directors from May 2023. He held the positions of 
Specialist (2015), Deputy Head of the Design Management 
Board (2016-2017) - Head of the Group’s Design Board (2018 
- present).

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0%

Mr. Nguyen Viet Hai

•	 Position: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1975

•	 Professional qualification: Bachelor of Information 
Technology

•	 Appointment date: From April, 2025

•	 Mr. Do Anh Tuan is one of the founding shareholders 
and has accompanied the development of both the 
Company and Sunshine Group. He has held many 
positions such as Chairman of the Board of Directors 
- Anh Duong Star Joint Stock Company (2011-2020); 
Head of IT Department - Central Emulation and Reward 
Board, etc.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 65%

•	 Position: Chairman of the Board of Directors

•	 Nationality: Vietnamese

•	 Year of birth: 1976

•	 Professional qualification: Civil Engineer 

•	 Appointment date: From February 25, 2025

•	 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Anh has over 20 years of experience 
in the real estate sector, particularly in executing large-
scale projects. Before his appointment as Chairman 
of the Board of Directors, he held various positions, 
including: Employee at 319 Corporation Ministry of 
National Defence and Viet Nam Construction And 
Import - Export Joint Stock Corporation; Head of City 1 
Project Management Board at Xuan Dinh Construction 
Investment Joint Stock Company; Member of the 
Board of Directors at APAC Consulting and Supervising 
Construction Works Joint Stock Company; Non-
executive Member of the Board of Directors of the 
Company (October 2020 – February 2025).

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0%

Mr. Do Anh TuanMr. Nguyen Xuan Anh

BOARD OF DIRECTORS1
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No. Member Position
Share-

holding 
ratio

Number 
of BOD 

positions 

1 Nguyen Xuan Anh Chairman of 
the BOD

0 4 Hung Thinh Phat Housing 
Investment Company Limited

Sunshine Tay Ho Joint Stock 
Company

VNE Sunshine Investment, Trade 
and Construction Development 
Joint Stock Company

SCG Construction Group Joint 
Stock Company

Chairman

Chairman of 
the BOD

Member of 
the BOD

Deputy 
General 
Director

2 Do Anh Tuan Member of 
the BOD

65% 4 Sunshine Group Joint Stock 
Company

S-Homes  Real Estate Business 
Investment Joint Stock Company

SCG Construction Group Joint 
Stock Company

Chairman of 
the BOD

Chairman of 
the BOD

Vice
Chairman of 
the BOD

3 Jun Sungbae Member of 
the BOD

0% 1 Sunshine Saigon Group Joint Stock 
Company

Deputy 
Director in 
charge of 
international 
business

4 Nguyen Nam Viet Member of 
the BOD

0.001% 1 KS Group Joint Stock Company

Sunshine Tay Ho Joint Stock 
Company

Northern Infrastructure Investment 
and Construction Company Limited

Gold Dragon Investment Company 
Limited

Sunshine Entertainment Joint Stock 
Company

Chief 
Accountant

Chief 
Accountant

Chief 
Accountant

Chief 
Accountant

Chief 
Accountant

5 Nguyen Viet Hai Independent 
member of 
the BOD

0 1 Sunshine – Design Joint Stock 
Company

Deputy 
General 
Director

Management positions in other companies

Subcommittees of the Board of Directors: None

B. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

No. Resolution/Decision No. ContentDate Approval rate

1 01/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the policy of signing the 
Security Service Contract between 
Sunshine Homes Development Joint Stock 
Company and S-Service Management & 
Operation Joint Stock Company

09/01/2024 100%

4 03/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the agenda and documents 
of the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders 2024

22/03/2024 100%

3 02/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the policy of signing the Sales 
Contract between Sunshine Homes 
Development Joint Stock Company and  
S-Homes Real Estate Business Investment 
Joint Stock Company

13/03/2024 100%

6 06/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the appointment of the 
Company’s Chief Financial Officer

20/05/2024 100%

8 08/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the policy of signing the 
Construction Contract with S-Decoro 
Joint Stock Company

12/7/2024 100%

2 04/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the last registration date to 
exercise the right to attend the Annual 
General Meeting of Shareholders 2024

20/02/2024 100%

5 05/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving amendments to the documents 
of the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders 2024

12/04/2024 100%

7 07/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the construction contract with 
SCG Construction Group Joint Stock 
Company

30/05/2024 100%

C. ESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

The Board of Directors frequently discusses, 
comprehensively evaluates, and makes timely decisions 
to ensure the Company’s strategic direction aligns with 
sustainable development. At the same time, the Board of 
Directors has effectively performed its role in overseeing, 
supporting, and facilitating the Executive Board’s 

implementation of the resolutions of the General Meeting 
of Shareholders, striving to fulfill the business plan 2024.

Throughout the year, the Board of Directors issued 
16 resolutions during both regular and extraordinary 
meetings. These decisions have contributed to shaping 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS1
the Company’s business operations while ensuring 
compliance with information disclosure regulations.

The Board of Directors has focused on implementing 
the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, 
ensuring compliance within its authority as prescribed 
by the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s Charter, and 

internal governance regulations. Additionally, the Board 
of Directors has consistently fulfilled its role in directing, 
supporting, and supervising the Executive Board in 
executing approved matters, ensuring legal compliance 
while balancing the interests of the Company and its 
shareholders.
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10 09/2024/SSH/NQ - HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the policy of signing a 
Contract on the provision, installation and 
configuration of centralized video storage 
equipment between Sunshine Homes 
Development Joint Stock Company 
and  Nanochip Technology Joint Stock 
Company

11/9/2024 100%

12 11/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the joint venture with Sunshine 
Sky Villa Joint Stock Company

14/11/2024 100%

14 13/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the implementation of the plan 
to receive the transfer of shares at Long 
Bien Construction Investment Joint Stock 
Company according to the Proposal 
No. 08/SSH/TTr-HDQT approved by the 
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
2024 on April 13, 2024

02/12/2024 100%

11 10/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the use of the Company’s 
assets to secure obligations at Ho Chi 
Minh City Development Joint Stock 
Commercial Bank (HDBank)

31/10/2024 100%

13 12/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the permission for Xuan Dinh 
Construction Investment Joint Stock 
Company - an indirect subsidiary of the 
Company to use assets owned by Xuan 
Dinh to secure the obligations of Sunshine 
Marina Joint Stock Company at Vietnam 
Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank

15/11/2024 100%

9 08A/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving transactions related to 
loans, collateral and investments of the 
Company’s Subsidiaries

5/9/2024 100%

16 15/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the Contract for providing 
management consulting services between 
Sunshine Home Development Joint Stock 
Company and Long Bien Construction 
Investment Joint Stock Company

28/12/2024 100%

15 14/2024/SSH/NQ-HĐQT Resolution of the Board of Directors 
approving the adjustment of the 
cooperation transaction to operate the 
swimming pool of the Sunshine Center 
project

04/12/2024 100%

D. DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DI-
RECTORS OVER THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

E. ACTIVITIES OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

F. LIST OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH CORPO-
RATE GOVERNANCE TRAINING

The Board of Directors closely monitored and strictly 
supervised the implementation of the General Meeting 
of Shareholders’ Resolutions, ensuring adherence to the 
established procedures and timelines.

Additionally, the Board of Directors placed special 
emphasis on overseeing the disclosure of information in 
compliance with regulations set by the State Securities 
Commission and the Hanoi Stock Exchange, ensuring 

The independent members of the Board of Directors 
carried out the following activities throughout the year:

•	 Provide independent advisory opinions to assist the 
Board of Directors in formulating and implementing 
sustainable development strategies aligned with the 
Company’s long-term objectives.

•	 Closely supervise the management and operational 
functions of the Board of Directors and the Board of 
General Director, ensuring compliance with transparent 
and efficient governance principles.

•	 Assess the reasonableness, legality, honesty, and 
prudence in the Company’s management and business 
operations; evaluate the systematicity, consistency and 

None

transparency and adherence to corporate governance 
standards.

More importantly, the Board of Directors maintained 
continuous oversight to ensure the Company fully 
complies with the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s 
Charter, and all applicable legal regulations, contributing 
to enhancing corporate governance effectiveness and 
sustainable development.

appropriateness in accounting, statistics and financial 
reporting.

•	 Monitor and evaluate the internal control system, audit 
processes, and financial control mechanisms to ensure 
the Company’s operations adhere to established 
procedures, maintain transparency, and achieve 
optimal efficiency.

•	 Review and assess the completeness, legality, and 
accuracy of periodic business reports, financial 
statements (annual, semi-annual, and quarterly), 
and management evaluation reports of the Board of 
Directors, to ensure transparency and accuracy in 
business operations.
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A. MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS A. SALARY, REWARDS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

B. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1

2

Nguyen Thi Thu Thuy

Tran Dang Khoa

No. Member of the Board 
of Supervisors

Number of meetings 
attended

Content of the meetingAttendance 
rate

Voting rate

02/02 100% 100%

02/02 100% 100%

3 Le Thi Thu Giang 02/02 100% 100%

•	 Position: Head of the Board of Supervisors
•	 Nationality: Vietnamese
•	 Year of birth: 1995
•	 Professional qualification: Bachelor of Economics
•	 Appointment date: April 2025
•	 Mr. Dao Ngoc Tuan Anh has extensive experience in the accounting and 

auditing field. Prior to joining the Company, he held positions such as 
Auditor at Nam Viet Auditing And Accounting Financial Consulting Services 
Company Limited - The North Branch; Financial Accounting and Compliance 
Control Specialist at Alphanam Investment Joint Stock Company; Auditor 
at AADL Auditing Company Limited; and Internal Control Specialist at 
S-Homes Real Estate Business Investment Joint Stock Company.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0%

Mr. Dao Ngoc Tuan Anh

•	 Position: Member of the Board of Supervisors
•	 Nationality: Vietnamese
•	 Year of birth: 1983
•	 Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting
•	 Appointment date: October 2020
•	 Mr. Tran Dang Khoa graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting 

from the National Economics University. He has over 10 years of experience 
working in the Finance – Accounting Department at Song Da 6 Joint Stock 
Company.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0%

Mr. Tran Dang Khoa

•	 Position: Member of the Board of Supervisors
•	 Nationality: Vietnamese
•	 Year of birth: 1987
•	 Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting, Bachelor of Law
•	 Appointment date: May 2023
•	 Ms. Le Thi Thu Giang graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting 

from the National Economics University and a Bachelor’s Degree in Law 
from Hanoi Law University. She has over 10 years of working experience as: 
an Accountant at C&D Ha Noi Joint Stock Company, a General Accountant 
at An Phat Mineral Exploitation Investment Joint Stock Company, Vincom 
1 Construction Company Limited, Chief Accountant at the Transportation 
Investment and Construction Consultant Joint Stock Company, etc.

•	 Shareholding ratio in the company: 0%

Ms. Le Thi Thu Giang

Total 720,000,000

No. Full name Position NoteTotal remuneration

1 Do Anh Tuan Chairman of the BOD No longer the Chairman of the 
BOD from February 25, 2025

240,000,000

3 Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh Member of the BOD Dismissed as the Chairman of 
the BOD from April 12, 2025

120,000,000

Unit: VND

2 Do Thi Dinh Member of the BOD Dismissed as the Chairman of 
the BOD from April 12, 2025

120,000,000

4 Nguyen Xuan Anh Member of the BOD Appointed as Chairman of the 
BOD as of February 25, 2025

120,000,000

5 Nguyen Viet Hai Independent member
of BOD

120,000,000

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS2

Total

1

3

2

4

6

Do Thi Dinh

Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh

Nguyen Thi Thanh Ngoc

Phan Ich Long

Nguyen Thi Phuong Loan

General Director

Deputy General Director

No longer the General Director 
from February 25, 2025

No longer holding The Chief
Accountant from March 25, 2025

Unit: VND

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Chief Accountant

12,727,612,122

3,018,615,390

2,695,093,702

903,807,218

3,337,595,812

2,772,500,000

No. Full name Position NoteTotal remuneration

3

Total

2

Tran Dang Khoa

Le Thi Thu Giang

Member  60,000,000

240,000,000

Member 60,000,000

Unit: VND

1 Nguyen Thi Thu Thuy Head of the Board
of Supervisors

120,000,000 No longer the Head of the Board 
of Superviors from April 12, 2025

No. Full name Position NoteTotal remuneration

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE 
BOD, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BOARD3

•	 Evaluating the Company’s business 
performance through the review of 
the 2024 Financial Statements;

•	 Examining and assessing the 
business results for the first half of 
2024 and planning the Supervisory 
Board’s activities for the second half 
of 2024.
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B. STOCK TRANSACTIONS OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, INSIDERS 
AND RELATED PARTIES IN 2024

C. CONTRACTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH INSIDERS
Details of transactions between Sunshine Homes and related parties are presented in Section VII of the Corporate 
Governance Report 2024. This information has been disclosed on the Company’s website and the Hanoi Stock Exchange 
in accordance with legal regulations. Investors and shareholders can find detailed information at the following link: 
https://ssh.vn/bao-cao-quan-tri-cong-ty/.

The order and procedures for approving transactions between the Company and related parties strictly complies with 
the Law on Enterprises, Law on Securities, and the Company’s Internal Governance Regulations. These transactions 
are approved by the Board of Directors and disclosed in accordance with the provisions of law.

None

THE CREATOR OF VOGUISH LIFESTYLE

D. EVALUATION OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS
Through the review and evaluation of the Company’s operations, the Board of Supervisors provides the following 
recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Executive Board:

•	 The global economy in 2025 may experience modest growth due to lower inflation and ongoing monetary easing 
in many economies. However, risks remain from geopolitical conflicts, increasing trade tensions, and high borrowing 
costs in several countries. Vietnam’s economy is expected to maintain positive growth momentum, but it will face 
both opportunities and challenges. To achieve the business plan 2025, the Board of Supervisors requests the Board 
of Directors to implement new and more effective measures and instructions to provide strategic direction to the 
Executive Board.

•	 Implementation of the business plan 2025: The Board of Directors should introduce new management measures 
to guide business operations, continuously monitor macroeconomic fluctuations, and stay updated on policy and 
regulatory changes in real estate and securities markets that may affect the Company’s business. Additionally, the 
Company should conduct impact evaluations and develop timely and effective solutions for corporate governance 
and operations. 

•	 Financial management: The Company should maintain strict control over capital mobilization, optimize capital 
allocation for projects, and ensure financial stability to meet business needs. Strengthening financial capacity, 
proactively securing capital sources, and enhancing risk management are essential to safeguard assets and optimize 
capital allocation for business activities in 2025 and the following years.

•	 Human resources: The Company should continue its human resource training strategy, strengthen the management 
system and organizational structure, and streamline management levels to optimize operations at all levels of 
governance, ensuring the effective utilization and development of resources.

•	 The Company should continue to improve the working environment, strengthen the organizational structure, supplement 
policies and enhance the quality of human resources to meet the increasing demands of production and business 
activities.
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VI. AUDITED CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.	 Statement of the executive board
2.	Independent auditors’ report
3.	Consolidated balance sheet
4.	Consolidated income statement
5.	Consolidated cash flow statement
6.	Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT2
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET3
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET3 CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT4
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6

106 Sunshine Homes Annual Report | 2024 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS6
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Recipients:
- SCC, HNX;
- Archival: Records Office.

CONFIRMATION BY THE COMPANY’S LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
(Signature, full name, and seal)

Jun Sungbae
Chief Executive Officer
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Contact Us

Shareholders and investors seeking information are kindly requested to contact:

Investor Relations Department
SUNSHINE HOMES DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: 9th Floor, Sunshine Center Building, No. 16 Pham Hung, My Dinh 2 Ward, 
Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi  

Email: ir@ssh.vn
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